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Security and Trust Company at the northwest corner of Pennsylvania 
Avenue and 15th Street, N.W. , is a dignifiedt= ]^a-Q4tssical Revival building 
erected in 1904-1905. With Riggs National Bank, a Category II Landmark, 
which is attached at the west, the building forms a monumental corner 
grouping enhancing the important Pennsylvania Avenue approach to the White 
House. Across Pennsylvania Avenue is the Treasury Building, a Category I 
Landmark, and across 15th Street is the National Savings and Trust Company, 
a Category II Landmark. Attached at the north is a 10-story office build 
ing erected by the bank in 1930-31.

The design of American Security and Trust Company is closely related to 
that of Riggs National Bank. Both buildings were designed by York and 
Sawyer of New York City. They have similar proportions, scale and mate 
rials and are in the same style. These features and their continuous 
roof line often cause them to be mistaken for one building.

American Security and Trust Company is a rectangular brick building, 53-1/2 
feet by 130 feet. Although it has the height of a four story building it 
contains only one room and a full basement. There is a low foundation.

The two visible facades are faced with smooth, ashlar granite. There is 
a full entablature with modillion cornice with dentil band. Hidden behind 
the stone parapet are two small gable-roofed skylights and a large hipped- 
roofed skylight. Both facades have symmetrical compositions. The narrower 
Pennsylvania Avenue (south) facade has one bay. The 15th Street (east) 
facade has seven bays, two end bays and a projecting five bay hexastyle 
portico. There are two levels of openings misleadingly suggesting that 
the building has two floors. On the first level are heavily grilled win 
dows with elaborate entablatures and sills supported by consoles. The 
second level has large windows with metal frames. Above them are carved 
garlands. It is possible that these windows date from the 1931-32 
remodeling.

Notable enterior features include the 40 foot tall, fluted Ionic columns 
of the portico and the stonework of the corner bays of the east facade and 
of the corner pilasters of the south facade. Here the smooth ashlar granite 
has deep horizontal joints but smooth vertical joints. This creates a 
striped effect.

The south facade has a slightly recessed area between the corner pilasters 
and below the entablature. This area contains two levels of windows 
flanked by smooth, Doric pilasters. Above the recessed area the parapet, 
which is basically composed of solid panels, has balusters.

The parapet of the east facade also has balusters above the windows of 
the corner bays. The corner bays have openings only at the first level. 
There are panels at the second level. Each of the five bays behind the 
portico have first and second level openings. The central bay contains 
the main entrance which now has a metal and glass revolving door. In 
front of the bays flanking the entrance are ornate bronze stanchions with 
a cluster of five circular lights. The parapet of the portico bears the 
words, "INCORPORATED MDCCCXC - ERECTED, MCMV." The frieze on the portico 
and on the south facade has the bank's name.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Joint Committee on Landmarks has designated the American Security and 
Trust Company a Category II Landmark of importance which contributes

significantly to the cultural heritage and visual beauty of the District 
of Columbia. The building is the home of a prominent Washington banking 
institution. Its exterior is representative of the best and most typical 
bank design of the early twentieth century, and its main banking room is 
an impressive space with Neo-classical revival details dating from the 
1931-32 remodeling. The Neo-classical revival building with hexastyle 
Ionic portico was constructed in 1904-1905 on one of the most important 
corners in Washington's financial district. It complements the Treasury 
Building, a Category I Landmark located across Pennsylvania Avenue, and 
helps set the monumental character of the area.

The building by York and Sawyer of New York City was reported by a con 
temporary banking magazine to be "the handsomest banking building in the 
United States." Plans and elevations were published in The American 
Architect and Building News of June 10, 1905.

The American Security and Trust Company, the second trust company in the 
District of Columbia, was first incorporated under the laws of Virginia 
by a charter granted October 12, 1889. That charter authorized the com 
pany to conduct a trust, banking, safe deposit, and storage business. 
Corporate offices were in Alexandria but the Washington office was in a 
Romanesque Revival building at 1419 G Street, N.W. The following year the 
company was reincorporated in the District of Columbia under the Trust 
Company Act of 1890. In 1891 it moved into its new Romanesque Revival 
building at 1405 G Street, N.W. The young company had grown rapidly. 
After one year its deposits exceeded $260,000,and by November 1891 its 
authorized capital stock of $1,250,000 was fully paid. By 1895 business 
had grown so much that its building was enlarged. One innovation at that 
time, reportedly the first in local banking circles, was the establishment 
of a woman's department.

On May 18, 1903, the Board of Directors recommended that capital be in 
creased to three million and the site at 15th and Pennsylvania Avenue 
vacated by Riggs National Bank in 1902 be purchased. This site was being 
rented by John R. McLean. McLean assigned his lease with the option to 
purchase the property to American Security and Trust Company. In May 
1904 the old United States Bank building, a federal building probably 
designed by George Hadfield in 1823, was demolished in order that the new 
bank building designed by York and Sawyer could be erected. York and
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7. Description - con't.

The interior of the building was remodeled in 1931-32 when it was linked to 
the first story of the neighboring office building. The Neo-classical 
character of the 1905 interior was maintained. The banking room retains 
to a large extent its 1932 appearance. It is finished in a variety of mar 
bles and has an elaborate, decorative ceiling. This impressive interior 
space occupies the entire volume of the building.

In 1931-32 balconies at the south and north were removed and the coved ceil 
ing flattened. Now the east and west walls are each divided into seven bays 
by fluted Ionic marble pilasters located above gray marble paneling. Double 
pilasters separate the end bays,reflecting the earlier location of the bal 
conies. Single pilasters separate other bays. The pilasters support an 
elaborate entablature with enriched mouldings. At the south end two panels 
flank the central window. A large arched opening surrounded by marble trim 
connects the main banking room with the first floor of the office building. 
Marble stairs located south of the entrance lead to the basement. The 
vaults were located in the basement but are now located in the basement of 
the office building and in the sub-basement of the original building. The 
basement now contains lounges, service areas, and storage space.

An outstanding feature of the main banking room is its ceiling with blue 
background and white and gold trim. It has three large octagonal panels 
surrounded by square panels. The panels have rosettes and enriched mould 
ings. About 1955 some of the rosettes were electrified. Other interesting 
features are the circular bronze plaque of the seal of the bank in the mid 
dle of the floor and the ten hanging circular lighting fixtures. These 
chandeliers are present in a 1917 photograph of the interior.

The first floor of the office wing is also finished with rich materials. 
Its ceiling is only one story high, but has vaults supported by marble 
faced piers with pressed plaster capitals. The metal elevator doors and 
postoffice box are notable decorative features.
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8. Significance - con't.

Sawyer's design was closely related to that of Riggs National Bank to which 
it was attached at the west. In 1905 American Security & Trust Company moved 
into their new building. In 1906 the bank received the deed for the property 
on which the building is located.

The bank continued to expand. In 1906 the storage business moved after it 
was separately incorporated under the title of Security Storage Company. In 
1919 the bank consolidated with Home Savings Bank, the second oldest and 
largest savings bank in the District of Columbia. Between April 1930 and 
September 1931, a 10-story office block was constructed north of the bank 
and connected to it. This building was also designed by York and Sawyer. 
When it was completed the main banking room was remodeled.

On April 21, 1933» American Security and Trust became a member of the Federal 
Reserve System. The following January it was admitted to membership in the 
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.

In 1946 Columbia National Bank which was chartered in 1887 was purchased.

The merger with National Metropolitan Bank in 1958 was one of the largest 
mergers in Washington's history. National Metropolitan Bank founded in 1814 
as the Bank of the Metropolis was the depository of U.S. funds when federal 
money was withdrawn from the Bank of the United States in 1836. In 1958 the 
American Security and Trust Company was the third largest bank in Washington. 
It continued growing and in 1959 purchased the City Bank of Washington.

In 1969 the bank, the 2nd largest bank in Washington, became a shareholding 
member of Allied Bank International, an international bank with authorized 
capital of $40 million. This organization was formed to help finance foreign 
trade transactions.
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